1958

# Meredith Page and Maurine S. Page v. Federal Security Insurance Co. : Brief of Defendant and Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF FACTS

This action was brought in the Third Judicial District of the State of Utah by the plaintiffs-respondents against the defendant-appellant, Federal Security Insurance Company, seeking to recover the face amount of an insurance policy in the amount of \$11,682.00, which policy was issued by the defendant on the life of Alma M. Page on the 15th day of

December, 1950, with Meredith Page, father of the insured and one of the plaintiffs herein, named as beneficiary thereon, the insured, Alma M. Page, having died on or about the 14th day of August, 1956.

The defendant-appellant filed its answer alleging that the insured, Alma M. Page, prior to his death, elected under the terms of the policy, "Option (B) Reduced Paid-Up Life Insurance", in the sum of \$1443.00.

The matter was heard by the court, sitting with a jury. At the close of plaintiffs' evidence, the defendant made a motion for a directed verdict, which motion was denied by the court. On the 12th day of December, 1957, the jury found in favor of the plaintiffs and against the defendant.

Thereafter, defendant filed a motion for judgment notwithstanding the verdict or, in the alternative, a motion for a new trial, which motions were, on the 3rd day of January, 1958, denied by the court.

On the 14th day of January, 1958, notice of appeal was filed and served by the defendant-appellant, and the cause is now before the court for review.

This action arose from the following transactions, to-wit:

Alma M. Page, on the 6th day of December, 1950, made an application in writing to the Federal Security Insurance Company for an insurance policy known and designated as "Bonus Policy, Participating 20 Payment Life" in the face amount of \$11,682.00, which policy was issued on the 15th day of December, 1950.



The insured was then 24 years of age and unmarried, but on or about the 24th day of February, 1954, he was married to Ruth Jensen, now surviving him. The references made throughout this brief to "Ruth Jensen Page" are to the widow of the insured.

The premium on the policy of insurance was \$400.00 a year, payable on the 15th day of December, each and every year. The premiums were paid on said policy, either by cash or policy loan, from 1950 through December 15, 1954, thus keeping the policy in force until December 15, 1955. .

The policy in question is profit sharing, the insured being entitled to dividends at the end of the second year, as provided in the rider attached to said policy, and likewise provides for cash values.

Mr. Erich Olschewski, referred to hereafter as "Erich" or "Mr. Olschewski," was, at the times mentioned herein, the assistant secretary of the defendant, Federal Security Insurance Company.

### STATEMENT OF POINTS

1. Did the insured, Alma M. Page, prior to his death, deliver his insurance policy to the company?

2. As the policy of insurance does not require the exercising of the options under the non-forfeiture provisions of the policy to be in writing, an oral election is sufficient under the law to effectuate a valid election.

3. Did the insured intend to elect one of the options under the non-forfeiture provisions of the policy, prior to his death?

4. Did the insured, Alma M. Page, prior to his death, elect "Option (B) Reduced Paid-Up Life Insurance," under the non-forfeiture provisions of the policy in question?

5. The court erred in not granting defendant's motion for a directed verdict.

6. The court erred in not granting defendant's motion for judgment notwithstanding the verdict.

7. The court erred in not granting defendant's motion for a new trial.

## ARGUMENT

### POINT ONE

**DID THE INSURED, ALMA M. PAGE, PRIOR TO HIS DEATH, DELIVER HIS INSURANCE POLICY TO THE COMPANY?**

The testimony of Ruth Jensen Page, widow of the insured, and of other witnesses established that the insured and his wife on two occasions visited the home office of the defendant company, Federal Security Insurance Company. The testimony of Ruth Jensen Page clearly points out that her husband, during his lifetime, did deliver to the defendant his life insurance policy.

In speaking of the second visit made by herself and her husband to the company offices, Mrs. Page testified:

"Q. A paid-up insurance. Now while you were there, did you have the insurance policy with you?

A. Back home?

Q. No, at the office?

A. Yes. We had it with us.

Q. You had it, and what did you do with it?

A. Erich kept it as far as I remember."

R. 24

Defendant's Exhibit No. 10, a letter obtained from Ruth Jensen Page at the time her deposition was taken, and introduced into evidence at the trial, states without qualification the whereabouts of the policy of insurance on the 3rd day of August, 1955. This exhibit is set forth in full on pages 35 & 36 of this brief. The last paragraph states:

"We shall continue to hold your policy in our possession until we hear from you."

Def's Exhibit No. 10, Ltr  
dtd Aug. 3, 1955, from  
Defendant to Alma M. Page

Under direct examination, Mr. Erich Olschewski, in speaking of the visits made to the company offices by the insured and his wife, testified:

"Q. What did you talk about?

A. As a result of this letter, I might first of all state they had left the policy with me and asked me to give them a letter explaining the various things I recommended for them and upon receipt of that letter in due time, they came back to give me their decision."

R. 37

In the direct examination of Mr. Olschewski with regard to Exhibit No. 10, the record shows:

"Q. Now, I show you what has been marked as defendant's Exhibit 10 and ask you whether you have ever seen that before?

A. Would you restate that please?

Q. I was asking you if you have ever seen it before?

A. Yes.

Q. Does it bear your signature?

A. Yes, it does.

Q. Do you know who dictated the letter?

A. I did.

Q. After you dictated it, what did you do?

MR. COTRO MANES: Will you stipulate that it mailed and received?

MR. RONNOW: Yes."

R. 36

Defendant's Exhibit No. 12, which was introduced into evidence, and which is set forth in full on page 37 of this brief, again states that the defendant had in its possession the insurance policy of Alma M. Page. The first paragraph of this exhibit, the carbon copy of a letter from the defendant to Alma M. Page, states:

"In accordance with your election when in the office on August 8, we return herewith your policy No. 20 PLB 3101."

Def's Exhibit No. 12, Ltr  
dtd Aug. 15, 1955, from  
Defendant to Alma M. Page

The insurance policy mentioned by number in this exhibit

is the same numbered policy as the one introduced by the plaintiffs as Plaintiffs' Exhibit No. 1.

The testimony of Ruth Jensen Page, with regard to the return of the insurance policy by the defendant to herself and her husband, shows:

"Q. Now, after the insurance policy came back from the insurance company,

MR. BUSHNELL: It has not been established whether the policy came back from the insurance company.

A. The policy came back.

MR. BUSHNELL: I withdraw my objection."

R.27

The testimony of Merle Thomas Olschewski, Erich Olschewski's secretary at the time in question, shows that she had the policy in her possession and affixed thereto the rider reducing the policy to paid-up life insurance, and mailed it back to the insured.

"Q. I show you what has been received into evidence, Plaintiffs' Exhibit 1, and ask you to examine it and say whether you have ever seen it before?

A. Yes, I have.

Q. Did you attach, then, the rider to that policy?

A. Yes, I did.

. . . . .

Q. What did you do then?

A. Mailed it to Mr. Page together with the letter of Mr. Olschewski."

R. 86

The only evidence introduced by the plaintiffs to rebut the fact that the deceased Alma M. Page surrendered his policy to the insurance company for endorsement was the testimony of the plaintiff, Meredith M. Page, who, under cross examination, testified:

"Q. All right, you stated a minute ago that you have a strong box at your home, is that correct?

A. Yes.

Q. And that the policy has been inside that box ever since it was issued?

A. That is right.

Q. All this time the policy was in this box?

A. Yes.

Q. Did you ever give it to your son?

A. I have never given it to my son."

R. 102

Considering Defendant's Exhibits 10 and 12, the testimony of the insured's widow, Ruth Jensen Page, and the testimony of the defendant's employees, Mr. and Mrs. Olschewski, there is an overwhelming preponderance of evidence that this policy was in fact delivered to the insurance company by the insured and likewise that it was returned by the company to the insured.

These facts were not controverted. The plaintiffs at no time alleged or plead that Exhibits 10 or 12 were fraudulent.

"Fraud is a matter to be established by clear and

convincing proof . . . Its existence should never rest upon mere suspicion or surmise."

Shaw v. Board of Education,  
38 N. M. 298, 31 P. 2d 993,  
93 A. L. R. 432, 439.

"Where fraud is charged, it must affirmatively be proved by clear and convincing testimony. *It cannot be established upon mere suspicion.*"

Weininger v. Metropolitan Fire  
Ins. Co., 359 Ill. 584, 195 N. E. 420,  
98 A.L.R. 169, 180  
(Emphasis supplied)

The plaintiffs did not object to the introduction of Exhibit 10 (R. 90). They did object to the introduction of Exhibit 12 on the grounds that it was not shown that the letter was ever received by Alma M. Page. The court ruled that this was correct, but allowed the exhibit to be introduced (R. 87).

It is contended that the testimony of Ruth Jensen Page, widow of the insured, did show that the letter had in fact been received.

"Q. I'll show you what has been marked defendant's Exhibit 12 and ask you to read that and tell me whether or not you have ever seen the original of that letter?

A. I'm afraid I didn't read it too well if we did get it.

Q. Well, did you ever see a letter like that?

A. Do I have to say yes or no?

Q. Yes, if you did see it or didn't we want the truth.

A. I think it was something like it I was reading."

R. 72

On cross examination by plaintiff's counsel, Mrs. Page testified:

"Q. Do you remember honestly reading or receiving the Exhibit which is marked No. 12?

A. As I said, not the wordings, but I remember talking that it was fixed the way we wanted it when the policy came back.

. . . . .

Q. Do you recall whether you said you read it or did your husband read it?

A. I believe we read it together."

R. 29

Mrs. Merle Olschewski testified that she transcribed Exhibit 12 from her shorthand notes, typed it on letterhead stationery, gave it to Mr. Olschewski for signing, and thereafter placed the letter in the envelope with the policy of insurance, sealed the letter in the envelope with the policy of insurance, stamped the envelope and mailed it to the insured, Alma M. Page, (R. 85, 86). She was not cross-examined by plaintiffs' counsel.

"It is generally recognized that a presumption of the due receipt of a letter or of a communication through the mails arises upon proof that such letter or communication properly addressed to the addressee and properly stamped with sufficient postage thereon was mailed . . . ."

20 Am Jur 196, Evidence, Sec. 196,  
citing Utah case of Campbell v.  
Gowans, 25 U. 268, 100 P. 397.

With the exception of the statement by Mr. Meredith



Page, one of the plaintiffs herein, to the effect that he never gave his son, Alma Page, the insured, the insurance policy and that the policy was in the strong box continuously from the time it was issued until after his son's death, all evidence showed that the policy was in fact possessed by the insured, Alma M. Page, who left it at the company offices with Mr. Olschewski. Three witnesses and two written documents substantiate this fact, as opposed to the statement of the plaintiff, Meredith.

"While a jury may not arbitrarily disbelieve a witness and reject his testimony, neither are they bound to accept a fact as established merely because he testifies to it, when the circumstances render its existence, or the testimony of the witness, improbable or doubtful."

Leavitt v. Thurston,  
38 U. 351, 113 P. 77.

" . . . the documentary proof, if inconsistent with the oral testimony, is controlling . . . "

Sachs v. Ohio Nat. Life Ins. Co.,  
148 F. 2d 128 (7th Cir. 1945).

## POINT TWO

AS THE POLICY OF INSURANCE DOES NOT REQUIRE THE EXERCISING OF THE OPTIONS UNDER THE NON-FORFEITURE PROVISIONS OF THE POLICY TO BE IN WRITING, AN ORAL ELECTION IS SUFFICIENT UNDER THE LAW TO EFFECTUATE A VALID ELECTION.

The insurance policy in question, Plaintiffs' Exhibit 1,

specifically spells out the necessity of written requests by the insured to effectuate certain changes under the policy, that is: (a) change of beneficiary, (b) request for automatic premium loan privilege, (c) revocation of automatic premium loan privilege.

The contract is silent as to the necessity of a written request for the election of any of the options known as Options A, B, and C. Thus, where the contract is silent as to the necessity of a written election, the court cannot insert or read into the option provision the word, "written."

"An insurance contract must be construed without disregarding words or clauses used, or inserting words or clauses not used."

29 Am Jur 173, Insurance, Sec. 157

"The court has no power to interpolate into the agreement between an insurer and the insured a condition or stipulation not contemplated either by law or by the contract between the parties."

29 Am Jur 173, 174  
Insurance, Sec. 157

The contract of insurance is not ambiguous and therefore the courts are bound to interpret it as written.

" . . . and as there is no ambiguity in the contract, it must be given effect as written. As has often been said, 'Courts are without authority to rewrite contracts'." Citing cases.

Summers v. Travelers Insurance Co.,  
109 F. 2d 845 (8th cir. 1940)  
127 A.L.R. 1336.

The options given the insured are for his benefit and the

exercising of the options are with him; and where it is not required that written acceptance of the option be made, then in that event an oral acceptance is sufficient.

“ . . . a verbal acceptance of an option is sufficient when the option does not require a written acceptance.”

12 Am Jur 534, Contracts, Sec. 39

### POINT THREE

DID THE INSURED INTEND TO ELECT ONE OF THE OPTIONS UNDER THE NON-FORFEITURE PROVISIONS OF THE POLICY, PRIOR TO HIS DEATH?

The testimony of the widow, Ruth Jensen Page, established that the motive of the insured and herself in going to the insurance company offices was to discontinue the policy as a \$400.00 per year premium payable insurance contract. On direct examination in regard to the visits made to the company offices by herself and the insured, Mrs. Page testified:

“Q. What did you and your husband go there for?

A. To have our policy discontinued.

Q. To have your policy discontinued?

A. We didn't want it any more. We wanted it as a paid up insurance.”

R. 21

On cross-examination regarding these visits to the company offices, Mrs. Page testified:

“Q. Let me ask you, did I understand your testimony correctly—you went in and arranged so that you would not have to make any more payments?

A. We were worried because we had borrowed on it and we had enough to do with payments on the farm, and we couldn't see how we could make such a payment.

Q. Then, the purpose for going in was to stop making payments?

A. We couldn't make any payments.

Q. You wanted to make arrangements so that you wouldn't have to make any further payments?

A. Yes."

R. 30

Mr. Erich Olschewski, on direct examination, testified:

"Q. In connection with this policy, did you have occasion during the year of 1955 to see Alma M. Page at your office?

A. Yes.

Q. Do you recall what month it was?

A. August.

Q. And who was with him?

A. His wife."

R. 35

At this point it is important to recognize that this policy was paid by a single premium each year of \$400.00 (R. 46), payable on the anniversary date of the policy which was December 15 of each year (Plaintiffs' Exhibit 1). The premium due on December 15, 1954, had been paid by a policy loan and the policy was in full force and effect with no additional premium due until December 15, 1955 (R. 54), which date was over four months in the future from the time of the con-

versations testified to by Ruth Jensen Page and Mr. Olschewski, and corroborated by Exhibits 3, 4, 10 and 12.

Defendant's Exhibit 10 corroborates the testimony of Ruth Jensen Page in regard to the desire of her husband, the insured, to apply for one of the options available to him under the policy.

"I have looked into the matter discussed as to the alternatives available and advisable in applying the non-forfeiture values of your policy.

"Again I'm sorry that you feel that you are unable to continue with this full program."

Defendant's Exhibit No. 10  
Ltr, dtd Aug. 3, 1955, from  
Defendant to Insured.

The evidence was uncontroverted that the insured, Alma M. Page, went to the insurance company offices of his own free will four months prior to the expiration of his policy of insurance. The evidence and testimony established beyond a reasonable doubt that his motive in going there was to do something about his insurance policy. From the evidence adduced the only conclusion that can be drawn is that the insured intended to elect one of the three options available under his policy of insurance.

#### POINT FOUR

DID THE INSURED, ALMA M. PAGE, PRIOR TO HIS DEATH, ELECT "OPTION (B) REDUCED PAID-UP LIFE INSURANCE," UNDER THE NON-FORFEITURE PROVISIONS OF THE POLICY IN QUESTION?

The evidence introduced in this matter established, and was not controverted, that the insured and his wife, Ruth Jensen Page, visited the office of the insurance company shortly prior to August 3rd, 1955, and again on the 8th day of August, 1955 (R. 20, 21, 35, 37, and Defendant's Exhibits 10 and 12).

It is important to note that the testimony of the insured's widow, Ruth Jensen Page, while uncertain as to the unimportant details (unimportant, at least, to the insured and his wife at the time of the transaction), is positive as to what the insured decided to do with regard to the election of one of the options available to him under the provisions of the policy.

The plaintiffs attempted to capitalize upon these uncertainties in her testimony, but it should be remembered that over two years had elapsed between the time the visits were made to the offices of the defendant insurance company and the election made of one of the options and the time her testimony was given. The uncertainty as to detail is only normal and lends itself to the belief of her testimony. How many of us can recall the details of transactions two years old?

Ruth Jensen Page testified:

"Q. Now, after you received this letter, did you and your husband discuss about the life insurance?"  
(The letter referred to is Defendant's Exhibit 10, Ltr Dated August 3rd, 1955.)

"A. Yes.

Q. And what did you do afterward, if anything?

A. We decided on the paid-up insurance."

R. 23

"Q. This gentleman here? And do you recall what was said at that time to Erich?" (Referring to the second visit made by the insured and Mrs. Page to the company offices.)

"THE COURT: That calls for a yes or no answer.

A. Yes.

Q. Well, what was it?

A. Can I answer it?

Q. You don't have to give us word for word, just the substance as far as you can remember. What recollection you have as to what your husband and you said?

A. We just told him what we wanted and he still tried to ask us to stay on, but . . .

Q. What did you say you wanted?

A. A paid up insurance.

Q. A paid up insurance . . . "

R. 24

"Q. Now, will you tell us what you received from the Insurance Company through the mails?

A. I said I thought we received a piece of paper with the insurance saying that it was paid up insurance."

R. 25

"Q. Did you and your husband talk about it, the insurance policy, after it came back from the Insurance Company?

A. No, I don't think so.

Q. At no time?

A. I saw the paper that I thought was with it. I don't know if it was attached.

Q. Where was the paper which you saw?

A. With the insurance when it came back."

R. 26

"Q. Now, after this policy came back, did you and your husband discuss the insurance policy?

A. No, not after it was fixed the way we wanted it."

R. 27

On cross-examination, Ruth Jensen Page testified:

"Q. Do you remember honestly reading or receiving the exhibit which is marked No. 12?

A. As I said, not the wordings, but I remember talking that it was fixed the way we wanted it when the policy came back."

R. 29

"Q. Can you explain the ways which Mr. Olschewski arranged the policy so that you wouldn't have to make any more payments?

A. No, I'm not quite sure. I know that we decided to take the paid up insurance. I can't recall the different ways."

R. 31

The witness, Ruth Jensen Page, was asked one question on re-direct examination:

"Q. Mrs. Page, do you remember the amount of insurance on the paid-up insurance policy?

A. One thousand four hundred something."

R. 32

The testimony of Ruth Jensen Page was never impeached by either her own testimony or by the testimony of any other



witness. She stands as an independent and disinterested party who has nothing to gain or lose in this law suit; and, as the person who was closest to the deceased insured, certainly knows what transpired and what the insured elected to do. The plaintiffs never did discredit the honesty or veracity of this witness. Her testimony, while uncertain as to detail, stands firm and positive as to the elected option of the deceased insured.

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