1958

Meredith Page and Maurine S. Page v. Federal Security Insurance Co. : Brief of Plaintiffs and Respondents

Utah Supreme Court

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

had been converted, they did not make any change upon the face of the policy, which they maintain was in their possession. Again it was testified that the usual custom with a policy in the trade is to make the change right on the face of the policy by striking through the face amount and inserting the modified amount for which paid-up insurance would be granted. The Plaintiff testified that he had a discussion with the vice president and the president of the company, and that they stated a mistake had been made, and that if the re-insurance company would make payment, they would pay the full amount of the policy. Incidentally, counsel for the insurance company, in a letter after the issue was raised, stated that if the Defendant company is on the risk for an amount in excess of \$10,000, then Lincoln National was also on the risk under the original of this agreement. Such evidence is more particularly reviewed as follows:

1. NO SIGNED, WRITTEN DOCUMENT SHOWING AN ELECTION FOR PAID-UP INSURANCE.

After the death of the insured, his father, one of the Plaintiffs, went to the office of the company and had a conference with Mr. Olschewski. Mr. Page asked to see a copy of the election or endorsement. In this regard, Mr. Page testified as follows:

"A. I met him, and Mr. Olschewski seemed to be very nervous, and I wanted a signed document from my son where he signed a document where he reduced the fact amount of that policy.

Q. What did he say when you told him that?

A. He became very angry. He said he didn't have any signature of my son.

Q. Did he attempt to find one?

A. Yes.

Q. When he looked, were you present?

A. I was present, my wife and my son's wife.

Q. Did he go through the files in your presence?

A. Yes, he went through many files.

Q. Did he produce for you any instructions, any signed election?

A. No, he did not.

Q. Did he produce for you a copy of the endorsement?

A. No, he didn't. I asked for that. I said, 'You say you have no signed document where he elected the paid-up insurance and reduced the value of the insurance? Where is the attachment to the policy, the duplicate?' And he said there would have been an attachment to the policy. I said it wasn't attached to the policy and he said he didn't have any duplicate. I asked him, 'What have you got?' He said he had a carbon, two carbon copies of a letter he had written to my son. I said, 'Well, it seems funny you should have two carbon copies of a letter supposed to have been written to my son and no carbon copies of the endorsement or no carbon copies of the account of the original paid-up endorsement.' (R. 98, 99).

On this matter, Mr. Olschewski testified as follows:

"Q. Did you in this case request a written election by the insured?

A. No.

Q. You do not have in your files any written document of any kind which he signed or otherwise indicated what election he want to take, if any?

A. That is right." (R. 59).

2. IN THE INSURANCE TRADE IT IS THE USUAL CUSTOM, POLICY AND PROCEDURE TO REQUIRE A SIGNED, WRITTEN ELECTION WHEN A POLICY IS CONVERTED TO PAID-UP INSURANCE.

Although Mr. Olschewski, vice president of the Defendant corporation, denied that at the time the change was made he knew that such custom prevailed in the industry, he did admit that he now knew such was the custom. He was asked:

"Do you not know that it is the usual policy and practice of the insurance companies in this area to require a written election on non-forfeiture options?

A. I do not know that.

Q. Do you know it now?

A. Yes.

Q. Do you understand then that it is the general policy of insurance companies in this area?

A. I think it is the advisable thing to do to prevent this kind of thing." (R. 61).

Mr. Wilmer Barnett, cashier of Lincoln National Life, a Home Office employee, being employed at the Regional Office here in Salt Lake City, and who testified that he had had twenty years experience in the insurance business, testified about this custom as follows:

"Q. Would you state what is the custom, policy, or procedure?

- A. Any person making any changes in reference to a policy does so only over the signature of the owner thereafter.
- Q. Does that apply to a non-forfeiture or other changes?
- A. To all changes including non-forfeiture.
- Q. What other types are there?
- A. The owner might change the beneficiary on his policy. He has the right to change the ownership or control and transfer it to someone else. He may make an election of dividend options as well as non-forfeiture options in the policy.
- Q. In all those cases that same custom and procedure applies?
- A. The signature of the owner of the policy is the manner in which that is accepted." (R. 108).

Mr. Olschewski testified that he had been with the Defendant company from the time of its inception in 1950, and that his duties involved policy issuing, underwriting, claims department, re-insurance and policy adjustments and modifications (R. 56). Mr. Olschewski testified that it was the policy of his company in connection with reinstatement applications handled by him that they be signed by the owner and that usually the company procured a written election in connection with dividend payments (R. 56-58).

3. THE COMPANY COULD NOT PRODUCE A CARBON COPY OF THE ALLEGED ENDORSEMENT OR RIDER WHICH WAS SUPPOSED TO HAVE BEEN ATTACHED TO THE POLICY.

Mr. Olschewski testified that he was familiar with the office routine of the company and that it was the usual practice and procedure of the company to make carbon copies of all documents so that the company could keep a complete file of all transactions (R. 63). He further testified that he dictated the letter of transmittal and the endorsement at the same time, and that he did not instruct the secretary to either make or not to make carbon copies for the company's files (R. 63). The secretary, who happened to be the wife of the vice president, Mr. Olschewski, testified that she made an original and two carbon copies of the letter (R. 85). The company could not produce a carbon copy of the endorsement which they claim was attached to the face of the policy. Mr. Olschewski was asked:

"Q. Do you have a carbon copy of the endorsement alleged to have been attached to this policy?

A. No." (R. 63).

4. AN INSPECTION OF THE EYELETS ON THE POLICY INDICATES THAT NO RIDER WAS EVER ATTACHED.

The company maintained that the endorsement changing the policy to one of paid-up insurance was attached to the face of the policy by the two outside eyelets. At the trial, witnesses for the company were asked to take their knives, if they so desired, and to pry open said eyelets to determine if any evidence of scraps of paper were present to indicate that such a document was attached by the eyelets. The policy was passed to the jury for their examination. It is submitted that an examination at this time will show that the said eyelets

have not either been removed or tampered with, and that they do not show that any rider was ever attached by them which has subsequently been torn off. This point is very significant since it is the very position of the Defendant that the rider was so attached and an examination will not corroborate such a position. The inspection of the Court is invited to the policy and the eyelets attached thereon. The black photo copies of the original application had been attached by the center eyelet and had been torn off. An examination of that eyelet will show that part of the black document is still under the edges of that eyelet.

5. LINCOLN NATIONAL, A RE-INSURANCE COMPANY OF THE DEFENDANT, HAS NO RECORD SHOWING THAT THE POLICY HAD BEEN CONVERTED TO PAID-UP INSURANCE.

It was maintained by the Defendant company that the re-insurance company had been advised of the change. In this regard, Mr. Barnett, cashier of Lincoln National, was subpoenaed to be present and to bring with him any documents or papers concerning any notice or advice from the Defendant corporation regarding modifications of the policy.

Mr. Barnett was asked:

"Q. Mr. Barnett, were you advised that there were or were not documents available showing the change to paid-up policy?

A. There were no documents showing it had been changed to a paid-up policy." (R. 107).

In another instance, he was asked the following questions:

"Q. Were you subpoenaed to appear in this action?

A. I was.

Q. And in the subpoena were you requested to bring any documents or papers concerning any notice or advice from the Federal Security Insurance Company that may have been received concerning the policy of Alma M. Page?

A. Yes.

Q. Particularly were you asked to bring any documents of the Company that would indicate that your Company had been advised that the policy had been changed to a paid-up policy?

A. Yes.

Q. Did you and your Company make an attempt to acquire and to locate those documents?

A. Yes, we did.

Q. What did you do?

A. Our local office does not have the information with reference to reinsurance, so I called our Fort Wayne office and the Reinsurance Department and asked if there was anything there on file and I was informed as to what he had found.

Q. Did you request from that office any documents pertaining to this particular policy and the fact that it had or had not been converted to a paid-up policy?

A. He informed me by telegram with reference to the information requested on the subpoena.

Q. Do you have that telegram with you?

A. I do. (Presents telegram to be marked as Plaintiff's Exhibit 13).

Q. I show you what has now been marked as Exhibit 13 and ask you if this is the telegram that you received?

A. It is.

Q. Does it say that there are no documents or evidence that the policy was changed to a paid-up policy?

A. It does." (R. 105, 106).

The telegram, Exhibit 13, which was received in evidence, states as follows:

"No documents or evidence in our files that this policy became paid up or was changed."

Without corroboration from the only independent source which the defendant company gave to the plaintiffs where a check might be made as to such conversion, the court was left with only the self-serving documents of the defendant corporation which could have been prepared or altered at any time.

6. IT IS THE USUAL POLICY IN THE INSURANCE TRADE TO MAKE A CHANGE RIGHT ON THE FACE OF THE POLICY BY DRAWING A LINE THROUGH THE FACE AMOUNT AND INSERTING THE NEW, REDUCED, PAID-UP AMOUNT.

In this regard, Mr. Olschewski was asked as follows:

"Q. You say it is the custom that they do make a change on the face, of reductions to paid up policies?

A. Yes." (R. 61).

Although the company took great pains to write in red on numerous office cards which were introduced as evidence showing that the policy had been reduced and paid up, etc., it is submitted that they made no change on the face of the policy itself, which is the principal contract showing the obligations, rights and duties of the respective parties. It is their contention, as shown by their brief, that the policy was in their possession for the purpose of effectuating this election. It is interesting to note that in connection with Exhibit 3, in red pencil, a big "X" is marked through the amount of the insurance and at the side is written, "Reduced, paid up." Then on August 8, 1955, written in pen, it is stated, "Elected paid-up for \$1,443," which is circled in red. Nevertheless, one "K.W.", a secretary in the office of the company, at the very bottom of the card, wrote in pen, "Lapsed, 9/16/55. K.W." The secretary was identified but was not called to testify. It is inconceivable that she would have written on the bottom of the card, "Lapsed, 9/16/55" if in fact the red notations were placed thereon on 8/8/55 as was testified to by Mr. Olschewski.

Mr. Olschewski testified that he could not explain why Exhibit 3 shows 9/16/55 as the lapse date. He testified as follows:

"Q. Can you explain why Exhibit 3 shows 9/16/55 instead of 7/16/55? I will ask you this question: Did that Exhibit 3 show the date lapsed was 9/16/55?

A. I can't explain why.

Q. It has the initials here 'K.W.' Is K.W. one of the employees of the company?

A. Yes. Kay Walker." (R. 71).

It was testified to by Mr. Olschewski that at the time of the election on August 8, 1955, he made the various changes on the cards which were introduced. However, on September 16, 1955, Exhibit 6, in a communication to Lincoln National Life, the policy was identified and was shown to have been lapsed. A document, Exhibit 8, produced from the files of the defendant company from Lincoln National Life Insurance Company, identifies the Page contract or policy and shows that it was lapsed. The entry was made on January 4, 1956 in connection with business for the month of October, 1955. If the election had been made as testified to on August 8, 1955, it would appear that the records of the company should so reflect rather than have the delay to September and October and the notation that the policy had lapsed rather than that it had been converted to paid-up insurance. As has previously been stated, the automatic non-forfeiture provisions or loan provisions would make the policy in full force and effect even though it may have lapsed because of nonpayment of premiums.

7. A SECRETARY OF THE COMPANY, AFTER THE DEATH OF THE INSURED, STATED THAT THE FULL FACE AMOUNT OF THE POLICY WOULD BE PAID, MINUS THE LOAN THEREON.

Mr. Page testified that, after the death of his son, he called the company and talked to a secretary and requested from her the necessary forms, and inquired about the amount which would be paid. He stated that after waiting ten to fifteen minutes on the telephone, he was advised that the face amount of the policy would be paid minus the \$400 loan (R. 97-98).

8. OFFICERS OF THE COMPANY STATED THAT, IF THERE WAS STILL REINSURANCE, THEY WOULD MAKE THE PAYMENT; THAT THEY HAD MADE A MISTAKE.

Mr. Page testified that in a conversation with Mr. Olschewski he was advised as follows:

“Well, Mr. Olschewski said he was very busy and I said I’d like to get this matter straightened out, and then at that time Mr. Olschewski said they had made a mistake and they would see if their reinsurance company would pay the policy. He said they would get them to pay it provided it hadn’t been terminated, would be no loss to the Federal Security if the Lincoln National would pay the policy and he would investigate this case and see if that time had lapsed.” (R. 100).

He testified further that a similar conversation was had with the president of the company in the presence of Mr. Olschewski (R. 101). In a letter from the general counsel of the company, Exhibit 14, after the issue in this lawsuit was presented, it was stated as follows:

“Initially we wish to state that if you are on the risk for an amount in excess of \$10,000, we are also on the risk under our original reinsurance agreement.”

Two Utah cases discuss the sufficiency of evidence in insurance cases to warrant a submission of the factual issues to the jury.

In *Palace Laundry Co. vs. Royal Indemnity Co.*, 224 P. 657, 63 U. 201, the Supreme Court stated:

“While the evidence respecting these matters, to the

mind of the writer, is meager and inconclusive, if there was some substantial evidence from which the jury could infer and find that the safe was broken open by the use of some tool or tools, and that there were some visible marks upon the same indicating that it was opened by the use of such tools * * * "

The court then reviews the evidence and concludes as follows on this issue:

"It is true that some other witnesses who saw the safe soon after the burglary said that they did not notice the marks testified to by the manager. The mere fact that they failed to notice them, however, was not conclusive. The jury had a right to believe the testimony of the manager and the other evidence which indicated the use of force and violence upon the safe. We are forced to the conclusion, therefore, that there was some substantial evidence showing that the defendant was liable under the policy."

In *Rouleau vs. Continental Life Ins. & Investment Co.*, 45 Utah 234, 144 P. 1096, the court had occasion to consider the sufficiency of the evidence to present a jury issue for determination wherein the company produced carbon copies of the letter which purportedly served notice upon the plaintiff that the policy had lapsed. The court in discussing this issue stated as follows:

"Up to this point there is no conflict in the evidence. The company claims that, in addition to the correspondence referred to, it, on the 16th day of October, the last day of grace under the terms of the policy to pay the premium, wrote the plaintiff, and produced and put in evidence a carbon copy of the letter as follows:

'Not having heard from you in answer to our

letter of the 5th, we have been compelled to cancel your policy No. 2508 on our books by its surrender value.'

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